UNITED STATES

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION
REGION |
475 ALLENDALE ROAD
KING OF PRUSSIA, PENNSYLVANIA 19406-1415

December 9, 2008
Docket No. 03034162 License No. 29-30308-01

Mark A. Smith, C.H.P.

Vice President, Radiation Services
Sterigenics International, Inc.
10811 Withers Cove Park Drive
Charlotte, NC 28278

SUBJECT: INSPECTION 03034162/2008001, STERIGENICS US, LLC., ROCKAWAY, NEW
JERSEY SITE AND NOTICE OF VIOLATION

Dear Mr. Smith:

On May 30, 2008, the NRC requested that you conduct an inspection or investigation in order to
review, follow up, and respond to information the NRC had recently obtained regarding the
shipment of two General Electric Company, Model GEPR-138, cobalt-60 sealed sources, which
occurred in November 2006. The two sources had been loaded into a MDS Nordion, F168
shipping cask and transported to MDS Nordion, in Canada. Additional information provided in
your correspondence dated June 17, 2008, which describes your investigation of this event and
your corrective actions to prevent this type of event from occurring in the future, was also
examined as part of the inspection. This information was reviewed as part of an in-office
inspection and the findings were discussed with you on December 3, 2008.

Based on the results of this inspection, it appears that your activities were not conducted in full
compliance with NRC requirements. A Notice of Violation is enclosed that categorizes each
violation by severity level. You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the
instructions specified in the enclosed Notice when preparing your response. In your response,
you should document the specific actions taken and any additional actions you plan to prevent
recurrence. Your response may reference or include previous docketed correspondence, if the
correspondence adequately addresses the required response. After reviewing your response to
this Notice, including your proposed corrective actions and the results of future inspections, the
NRC will determine whether further NRC enforcement action is necessary to ensure compliance
with NRC regulatory requirements.

Current NRC regulations are included on the NRC's website at www.nrc.gov; select Nuclear
Materials; Medical, Academic, and Industrial Uses of Nuclear Material; then Regulations,
Guidance, and Communications Page. The current Enforcement Policy is included on the
NRC's website at www.nrc.gov; select About NRC; How We Regulate; Enforcement; then
Enforcement Policy. You may also obtain these documents by contacting the Government
Printing Office (GPO) toll-free at 1-866-512-1800. The GPO is open from 7:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m.
EST, Monday through Friday (except Federal holidays).



M. Smith 2

Please contact Judy Joustra at 610-337-5355, if you have any questions regarding this matter.

Sincerely,
Original signed by Marie Miller

Marie Miller, Chief
Security and Industrial Branch
Division of Nuclear Materials Safety

Enclosure
Notice of Violation

cc:
Stanley Yap, Radiation Safety Officer
State of North Carolina

State of New Jersey
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION

Sterigenics US, LLC. Docket No. 03034162
Rockaway, NJ License No. 29-30308-01

Based on a review of the information provided in your June 17, 2008, letter to the NRC, the
NRC has concluded that three violations of NRC requirements had occurred as discussed
during an exit meeting held on December 3, 2008. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement
Policy, the violations are listed below:

10 CFR 71.5(a) requires that a licensee who transports licensed material outside of the site of
usage, as specified in the NRC license, or where transport is on public highways, or who
delivers licensed material to a carrier for transport, comply with the applicable requirements of
the regulations appropriate to the mode of transport of the Department of Transportation (DOT)
in 49 CFR Parts 107, 171-180, and 390-397.

1. 49 CFR 173.473 requires, in part, that in addition to other applicable
requirements of this subchapter, each offeror of a foreign-made Type B(U)
package shall also comply with 49 CFR 173.473(d), which requires that all
requirements of the foreign competent authority certificate and the U.S.
Competent Authority revalidation must be fulfilled.

Contrary to the above, as of November 27, 2006, the licensee did not fulfill all the
requirements of the foreign competent authority certificate and the U.S.
Competent Authority revalidation. Specifically, the licensee shipped two special
form sources manufactured by General Electric Company, Model No. GEPR-83
containing approximately 620 curies of cobalt-60 and 550 curies of cobalt-60, in a
foreign made package MDS Nordion F-168, USA/6306/B(U). The GERP-183
sources are not authorized for shipment in the F-168 package.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement V).

2. 49 CFR 173.476(a) requires, that each offeror of special form Class 7
(radioactive) materials must maintain on file for at least one year after the latest
shipment, and provide to the Associate Administrator on request, a complete
safety analysis, including documentation of any tests, demonstrating that the
special form material meets the requirements of 49 CFR 173.469. An IAEA
Certificate of Competent Authority issued for the special form material may be
used to satisfy this requirement.

Contrary to the above, as of November 27, 20086, the licensee did not maintain on
file for at least one year after the latest shipment of the two GEPR-183 sources or
provide the Associate Administrator a complete safety analysis of the these
sources, including documentation of any tests demonstrating that the special form
material meets the requirements of 49 CFR 173.469. Specifically, the Special
Form Certificate for these sources had expired in March 1996, and a current
Special Form Certificate did not exist at the time of the shipment.



Notice of Violation 2
Sterigenics International, Inc.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement V).

3. 49 CFR 173.476(b) requires, in part, that prior to the first export shipment of a
special form Class 7 (radioactive) material from the United States, each offeror
shall obtain a U.S. Competent Authority Certificate for the specific material.

Contrary to the above, as of November 27, 2006, the licensee did not obtain a
U.S. Competent Authority Certificate for the two GEPR-183 sources prior to the
shipment of the sources from the United States

This is a Severity Level |V violation (Supplement V).

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.201, Sterigenics US, LLC. is hereby required to submit a
written statement or explanation to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document
Control Desk, Washington, D.C. 20555, with a copy to the Regional Administrator, Region |,
within 30 days of the date of the letter transmitting this Notice of Violation (Notice). This reply
should be clearly marked as a "Reply to a Notice of Violation" and should include for each
violation: (1) the reason for the violation, or, if contested, the basis for disputing the violation, (2)
the corrective steps that have been taken and the results achieved, (3) the corrective steps that
will be taken to avoid further violations, and (4) the date when full compliance will be achieved.
Your response may reference or include previous docketed correspondence, if the
correspondence adequately addresses the required response. If an adequate reply is not
received within the time specified in this Notice, an order or a Demand for Information may be
issued as to why the license should not be modified, suspended, or revoked, or why such other
action as may be proper should not be taken. Where good cause is shown, consideration will be
given to extending the response time.

If you contest this enforcement action, you should also provide a copy of your response to the
Director, Office of Enforcement, United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington,

DC 20555-0001. Under the authority of Section 182 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 2232, any response
which contests an enforcement action shall be submitted under oath or affirmation.

Your response will be placed in the NRC Public Document Room (PDR) and on the NRC Web
site. To the extent possible, it should, therefore, not include any personal privacy, proprietary, or
safeguards information so that it can be made publically available without redaction. However, if
you find it necessary to include such information, you should clearly indicate the specific
information that you desire not to be placed in the PDR, and provide the legal basis to support
your request for withholding the information from the public.

In accordance with 10 CFR 19.11, you may be required to post this Notice within two working
days.

Dated This _9th _day of _December 2008
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